
19 March 2019 at 7.00 pm

Conference Room, Argyle Road, Sevenoaks
Despatched: 11.03.19

Legal & Democratic Services 
Advisory Committee 
Membership:
Chairman, Cllr. Firth; Vice-Chairman, Cllr. Pett  
Cllrs. Abraham, Barnes, Bosley, Coleman, Eyre, Halford, Mrs. Hunter, Lake, 
McGarvey and Raikes

Agenda
There are no fire drills planned. If the fire alarm is activated, which is a 
continuous siren with a flashing red light, please leave the building immediately, 
following the fire exit signs.

Apologies for Absence
Pages Contact

1.  Minutes (Pages 1 - 4)
To agree the Minutes of the meeting held on 22 
January 2019, as a correct record.

2.  Declarations of Interest 
Any interests not already registered.

3.  Actions from Previous Meeting  

4.  Update from Portfolio Holder  

a) Legal Successes (Pages 5 - 8) Martin Goodman
Tel: 01732227425

5.  Referrals from Cabinet or the Audit 
Committee (if any) 

 

6.  Brexit Update (Pages 9 - 12) Margaret Carr 
Tel: 01732 227341

7.  Licensing and how it contributes to 
Safeguarding 

(Pages 13 - 44) Sharon Bamborough 
Tel: 01732227325

8.  Member Induction and Training (Pages 45 - 46) Jim Carrington-West 
Tel: 01732 227286

9.  Work Plan (Pages 47 - 48)  



EXEMPT INFORMATION 

At the time of preparing this agenda there were no exempt items. During any 
such items which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public.

If you wish to obtain further factual information on any of the agenda items listed 
above, please contact the named officer prior to the day of the meeting.

Should you need this agenda or any of the reports in a different format, or 
have any other queries concerning this agenda or the meeting please contact 
Democratic Services on 01732 227000 or democratic.services@sevenoaks.gov.uk.



13

LEGAL & DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting held on 22 January 2019 commencing at 7.00 pm

Present: Cllr. Firth (Chairman)

Cllr. Pett (Vice Chairman)

Cllrs. Abraham, Coleman, Eyre, Halford, Mrs. Hunter, Lake, and 
McGarvey 

Apologies for absence were received from Cllrs. Barnes and Bosley

Cllr. Dr. Canet was also present.

27.   Minutes 

Resolved: That the Minutes of the meeting of the Advisory Committee, held 
on 2 October 2018, be approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct 
record.

28.   Declarations of Interest 

There were none.

29.   Actions from Previous Meeting 

The actions from the previous meeting were noted.

30.   Update from Portfolio Holder 

The update from the Portfolio Holder was noted.

The Portfolio Holder, and Chairman, advised that Quercus7 had completed the 
purchase of a property in Westerham which would be let as soon as possible.  This 
was the first part of a two-part investment which in total exceeded £1m and met 
the investment criteria.

She also advised that discussions on joining the Licensing Partnership were still 
ongoing with the London Borough of Bromley was looking positive, and highlighted 
the increased uptake of online registering for the electoral register.  

The legal successes report was noted with a request for more information on costs 
with regards to the Emergency Hygiene Prohibition Notice.

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



Legal & Democratic Services Advisory Committee - 22 January 2019

14

31.   Referrals from Cabinet or the Audit Committee 

There were none.

32.   Brexit Update 

The Chairman welcomed Heidi Skinner, Public Affairs Manager of the Freight 
Transport Association (FTA) to the meeting, who gave a presentation on the plans 
for Dover and the knock on effects of Brexit for West Kent including an explanation 
of ‘Operation Brock’.  Members took the opportunity to ask questions.  In response 
to some of those questions she advised that there were a lot of unknowns at the 
moment. Ideally the FTA would like to have more time and an implementation 
period, however, after any initial issues, businesses would adapt.

The Chairman thanked Heidi for the presentation and the Committee showed their 
appreciation.

The Policy Officer presented the report and Members discussed the latest news.

Resolved:  That the report be noted.

33.   Electoral Services Update 

The Chief Officer Corporate Services, presented a report which updated Members 
on improvements which had been made in Electoral Services within the current 
legislative framework. Further improvements would continue to be sought to 
enable the Council to deliver efficiencies, enhance and automate processes and 
further improve the service delivered to customers.

In response to questions the Chief Officer Corporate Services advised that he did 
not know if the scheduled date had slipped for the Overseas Electors Bill’s third 
reading due on 25 January 2019 and would check; the Council would not be 
involved in any of the Photo ID pilots; and dependant on the Brexit process, if 
there was a need to hold a European election, there may be a possible impact on 
local election timings but this was still a very uncertain position at present.  

Resolved:  That the report be noted.

34.   Local Land Charges - Review of Fees 

Members considered a report which sought an increase in the current Land Charges 
fees schedule.

It was confirmed that historical costs could not be accounted for within the new 
fee structure, and that the proposed fees were set on a cost recovery basis only in 
line with current legislation and benchmark data.  It was thought useful if the fees 
could automatically rise annually in line with inflation.

Page 2

Agenda Item 1

https://cds.sevenoaks.gov.uk/documents/s36953/FTA%20-%20Sevenoaks%20Council%20-%20Jan%202019.pdf?J=3


Legal & Democratic Services Advisory Committee - 22 January 2019

15

Public Sector Equality Duty
Members noted that consideration had been given to impacts under the Public 
Sector Equality Duty. 

Resolved:  That it be recommended to Cabinet that 

a) the proposed Land Charges fees set out below be agreed to take effect 
on 1 April 2019;

Search Type Current 
Fee (£)

Proposed 
Fee (£)

Full Search (LLC1 & CON29) 122 165
LLC1 20 33
CON29 102 135
Additional Parcel of Land 18 27
CON29O Printed Enquiry (Each) Q4 - 
Q22

18 20

b) the fee schedule above be increased annually in line with the Council’s 
standard inflationary measure and rounded to the nearest £1.00.

35.   Work Plan 

The expansion of the Licensing Partnership report was moved to the next meeting 
and the work plan was noted.

Members commented that they thought it would be useful to have a debrief with 
relevant officers as to what they thought would be useful information for newly 
elected Members in May 2019.

Action 1: Chief Officer Corporate Services to review the Member training 
questionnaire and arrange a feedback session with Members, especially 
newer ones, on Councillor induction packs and training.

THE MEETING WAS CONCLUDED AT 9.00 PM

CHAIRMAN

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



LEGAL SUCCESSES

Legal and Democratic Services Advisory Committee – 19 March 2019

Report of Chief Officer Corporate Services

Status For information 

Key Decision No

Executive Summary: A table showing the successes of the Legal team is appended 
to this report.

Portfolio Holder Cllr. Anna Firth

Contact Officer Martin Goodman, Ext. 7245

Recommendation to Legal and Democratic Services Committee:  

That the report be noted.

Introduction and Background

1 The Legal team provides an in-house service to the Council, covering a wide 
range of contentious and non-contentious work.

2 The appended table is a snapshot of significant ‘legal successes’ since the 
last meeting of the Advisory Committee.  

3 This report is to be noted.

Key Implications

Financial 

None arising from this report.

Legal Implications and Risk Assessment Statement. 

None arising from this report.

Equality Assessment  

The decisions recommended through this paper have a remote or low relevance to 
the substance of the Equality Act. There is no perceived impact on end users.

Page 5

Agenda Item 4a



Appendices Appendix A – Table of Legal successes.

Background Papers None.

 

Jim Carrington-West

Chief Officer Corporate Services

Page 6

Agenda Item 4a



LEGAL SUCCESSES
23/01/2019 TO 07/03/2019

1
D:\sevenoaks\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\0\0\AI00011001\$34saawyw.docx

DATE LEGAL ACTION RESULTS FINANCIAL 
IMPLICATIONS

FOLLOW-UP

08.02.2019 Appeal by Hackney Carriage 
Driver against revocation

Persuaded at Court to drop 
appeal for settlement of no costs

None Driver has submitted 
new application for 
licence, due to 
updated information

15.02.2019 Prosecution in Magistrates’ Court 
for breach of a Community 
Protection Notice.

Case related to 4 offences of 
failing to control dogs, which had 
strayed and caused significant 
distress and harm in New Ash 
Green

Defendant convicted on all 4 
counts. Defendant fined, costs 
awarded and dogs are to be 
confiscated from defendant.

Defendant fined £350 
plus £30 victim 
surcharge.

£350 of the Council’s 
costs reclaimed.

Continued monitoring 
of defendant who 
remains subject to 
the Notice.

26.02.2019 Drafting of tailored Licensing 
Hearing procedures to deal with 
SEV applications

New procedures adopted by 
Council on 26.02.2019

None Officers have been 
given delegated 
authority, after 
consultation with the 
Chairman of 
Governance, to draft 
further hearing 
procedures for other 
specific hearing types

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 4a



T
his page is intentionally left blank



BREXIT UPDATE

Legal and Democratic Services Advisory Committee – 19 March 2019

Report of Chief Executive

Status For Information

Key Decision No

Portfolio Holder Cllr. Anna Firth

Contact Officer Margaret Carr  Ext. 7341

Recommendation to Legal and Democratic Advisory Committee:  That the Brexit 
Update report is noted.

Reason for recommendation: Assessing the impact of Brexit on the Council is part 
of an on-going role for the Legal and Democratic Services Advisory Committee and 
supports Members in identifying any preparation that might be necessary to meet 
the challenges and opportunities ahead.

Introduction and Background

1 This is the sixth report updating Members of the Legal and Democratic 
Services Advisory Committee on Brexit. It aims to identify any actions or 
preparation that might be necessary for the Council and the District in order 
to meet the challenges, and to maximise the opportunities, of the UK 
leaving the EU. Previous reports are available in the background papers to 
this meeting. 

2 This report updates Members on the latest events in relation to the UK 
Government’s preparations for Brexit and the role of local government 
within this.   

UK-EU Negotiations

3 Since the last report, the “Meaningful Vote” promised to Parliament took 
place in January 2019, having been postponed from the original date of 11 
December 2018. The Government lost this vote; the principle issue with the 
Withdrawal Agreement (WA) and Political Declaration (PD) is with the status 
of the “backstop” in relation to avoiding a hard border between the Irish 
Republic and Northern Ireland. 

4 On Tuesday 29 January a series of votes in the House of Commons resulted 
in support being given to the Prime Minister to seek to amend the current 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Withdrawal Agreement on the issue of the backstop, in order to secure a 
deal to exit the EU.

5 The Government’s position remains that their priority is to leave with a deal 
on 29 March. At the time of writing, the Prime Minister has promised a fresh 
vote on the Brexit deal on or before 12 March.

6 If this is rejected, the Prime Minister has promised to bring forward a second 
motion for debate on 13 March, which would ask MPs if they support 
“leaving the EU without a withdrawal agreement and a framework for a 
future relationship on 29 March.”  

7 If the Commons rejects this, then a motion will be brought forward for 
debate on Thursday 14 March. This motion would propose a “short 
extension” of Article 50’s two-year negotiating period. 

8 The outcome of this vote is (as with the “no-deal” debate) not legally 
binding.

Local Government

9 The Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) 
continues to engage with local government on the issues that will affect all 
regions and those that are specific to individual regions and councils. The 
Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government wrote to 
Council Leaders on 31 January making it clear that it was “essential” for 
councils to ensure they were “all undertaking the necessary local planning 
and preparations” in the event of no-deal.

10 Following this correspondence, the Ministry has released information on a 
£56m fund to support councils with this preparation and he has committed 
to further funding from across Whitehall if necessary. The funding will be 
distributed across all County, Unitary and District Councils. Like all other 
Districts, Sevenoaks DC will receive £17,500 in 2018/19 and a further 
£17,500 in 2019/20. The Council has no immediate plans to spend this 
money but it will be held for the purpose of preparing for exiting the EU 
should it become evident that it is required.

11 In addition to the funding announced the Secretary of State also announced 
that the EU Exit Local Delivery Board which he chairs and is a cross-
departmental committee, will now increase the frequency of their meetings 
to monthly.

12 Details have been released on the creation of the Local Authority 
Information Network comprising of nine senior officers across all regions of 
England to support with implementing no deal plans at a local level. The 
South East is represented by the Chief Executive of East Sussex Council, 
Becky Shaw. According to the government, it is expected that these nine 
will “engage with councils in their region to share information on 
preparations to support an orderly exit. Simultaneously, the chief executives 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



will be kept well-informed on national policy on EU exit that could have 
implications for local services, businesses and residents.”

13 MHCLG is also proposing some themed events, together with an updated 
partnership pack: ‘Preparing for changes at the UK border after a no deal 
exit’ released on 6 February 2019. This gives guidance and links to help 
businesses prepare for changes to cross border activity between the UK and 
EU.

14 Officers have been engaging with the Kent Resilience Forum as appropriate 
regarding preparations for a no deal scenario and there is now a single 
portal on gov.uk website for local authorities on Brexit as referred to in the 
report to Members on 22 January 2019.

15 Government has also been clear that the UK will be leaving the EU on 29 
March 2019 and that elections for the European Parliament will not 
therefore be taking place in May.

Commentary

16 The next Meaningful Vote will have taken place by the time of the Advisory 
Committee meeting on 19 March 2019. It is hoped that will provide more 
certainty about the UK’s exit from the EU.

17  Council Officers are continuing to engage on ‘no-deal’ scenario planning 
being co-ordinated by the Kent Resilience Forum and are continuing to 
monitor advice and guidance from Government departments. 

18 Should the outcome of the votes in Parliament during the week of the 11 
March have any implications for the Council or the District, Officers will 
provide a further verbal update at the Advisory Committee meeting.

Key Implications

Financial 

There are no financial implications for this report

Legal Implications and Risk Assessment Statement. 

There are no legal implications for this report

Equality Assessment  

The decisions recommended through this paper have a remote or low relevance to 
the substance of the Equality Act. There is no perceived impact on end users.

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



Appendices None

Background 
Papers

Report to Legal and Democratic Services Advisory Committee, 
January 2018

http://cds.sevenoaks.gov.uk/documents/s32939/
06%20Brexit%20Committee%20Report%20January

Report to Legal and Democratic Services Advisory Committee, 
March 2018

http://cds.sevenoaks.gov.uk/documents/s33721/
08%20Brexit%20Update.pdf?J=1

Report to Legal and Democratic Services Advisory Committee, 
June 2018

https://cds.sevenoaks.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?
CId=325&MId=2287&Ver=4&J=2

Report to Legal and Democratic Services Advisory Committee, 
October 2018

https://cds.sevenoaks.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=325&MId=
2288&Ver=4&J=1

Report to Legal and Democratic Services Advisory Committee, 
January 2019

https://cds.sevenoaks.gov.uk/documents/s36815/06%20Brexit%
20Update.pdf?J=4

Dr Pav Ramewal
Chief Executive

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



LICENSING AND HOW IT CONTRIBUTES TO SAFEGUARDING 

Legal & Democratic Services Advisory Committee – 19 March 2019 

Report of Chief Officer Environmental & Operational Services

Status: For Information

Key Decision: No

Executive Summary:  This report provides Members with information on how 
licensing can impact on the safeguarding of residents

This report supports the Key Aim of Protecting our residents by making sure that
all of our policies, partnerships and teams are working together to safeguard 
people and communities.

Portfolio Holder Cllr. Anna Firth

Contact Officer Sharon Bamborough  Ext. 7325

Recommendation to Advisory Committee: That the report be noted.  

Introduction and Background

1 This Council works with key partners including Kent Public Health Team, GP 
Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs), local health and social care providers 
and the voluntary sector to meet the Community Safety priorities within the 
Council Plan to protect our residents by making sure that all of our policies, 
partnerships and teams are working together to safeguard people and
communities.

2 This Council’s services, public assets and local partnerships have a unique 
and multi-dimensional role in improving safeguarding outcomes

3 Some of the key functions delivered by this Council that can play a 
significant role in safeguarding including Housing, Planning, Licensing, 
Environmental Health, Community Safety and Economic Development.  

How Licensing fits with Safeguarding

4 There are several areas in which the role of licensing has a part to play in 
contributing towards the safeguarding. These include: 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



 The link between abuse of alcohol and safeguarding issues (alcohol 
related illness, alcohol fuelled behaviour e.g. domestic violence or on 
street violence)

 The availability of alcohol (the number of off-licences and hours of 
operation) 

 alcohol related crime and disorder and violence 

 red flag issues (taxis used for grooming/trafficking and drug dealing 
customers, who are  often young and vulnerable persons) 

 Addiction – not just alcohol, but gambling – ensuring solid procedures 
and policies are in place to assist customers who may suffer. The 
recent correspondence from GambleAware will be referred to in 
presentation.

What impact can Licensing have on these issues?

5 Whilst it can be easy to identify particular problems with a known premises 
and take action against to review the licence, it is harder to evidence a 
more widespread link between general areas (such as town centres) and the 
increase / presence of alcohol related safeguarding issues.  It will rely on 
good intelligence gathering including statistics form Police and ambulance 
service callouts if available. 

6 The Licensing Partnership has promoted the Metropolitan Police initiative, 
WAVE, this year, in conjunction with Kent Police, across the four authorities. 
(WAVE is the Welfare and Vulnerability Engagement) – which is an initiative 
to remind / train the industry and officers about what more they should do 
to intervene and how this can have a real impact on health outcomes.

7 As part of the Knowledge test all potential new taxi drivers must pass in 
order to become licensed, Safeguarding is a compulsory module which must 
be successful answered. The safeguarding module covers recognising the 
signs that a vulnerable person (especially a child) may be being trafficked or 
may be under duress to carry out drug dealing away from their home (there 
has been much in the press about the issue of ‘crossing county lines’).  We 
work closely with the police on individual cases brought to our attention and 
always take swift action.

8 Licensing has a part to play in ensuring Gambling Harms are have greater 
awareness attached to them. We recently received some correspondence 
from GambleAware (attached) and we will use this to investigate what more 
we can do to work across the Council and with partner organisations such as 
this one to reduce the effects on gamblers and their families (who can often 
be the unseen victims, experiencing financial hardship and even 
homelessness).

9 Members will be updated at the meeting with a presentation on this.

Page 14

Agenda Item 7



Key Implications

Financial 

There are no financial implications for the Council associated to this report.

Legal Implications and Risk Assessment Statement. 

There are no legal implications for the Council associated to this report.  

Equality Assessment 

No decision is required as part of this paper and therefore no perceived impact on 
end users.  

Conclusions

For Members to note the work of this Council’s Licensing function to contribute to 
the safeguarding of local residents and visitors to our area. 

Appendices Appendix A

Background Papers: None

Richard Wilson  
Chief Officer Environmental & Operational Services 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 17

Agenda Item 7



Page 18

Agenda Item 7



Foreword 

There is increasing awareness about harmful 

gambling and its impact on families and 

local communities, as well as the individuals 

directly harmed by it. The prevalence of high 

stakes betting machines on high streets; the 

significant increase in gambling advertising 

since the introduction of the Gambling Act 

over a decade ago; and the rise in online 

gambling have all contributed to societal 

concern about gambling in the UK and the 

harm that can be associated with it. 

The planned reduction of maximum stakes 

on Fixed Odds Betting Terminal (FOBT) 

machines to £2 is extremely welcome, with 

the LGA and others having long argued that 

the £100 stake was too high. But it is just one 

step among many more that need to be taken 

to prevent and address harmful gambling. 

Harmful gambling is increasingly cited 

as a public health issue which requires a 

broad response; that is to say, traditional 

approaches that focus on single interventions 

do not tend to work at a population level. 

Harmful gambling is a complex problem 

with a large number of different but often 

interlinked factors no single measure is likely 

to be effective on its own in addressing it. 

Consequently, many organisations have a part 

to play in addressing the issue of harmful 

gambling, not least the gambling industry itself. 

There are several ways in which councils can 

try to support those individuals and families 

who are experiencing harm from gambling 

without taking on responsibility for treatment. 

This is in addition to their statutory licensing 

responsibility to try to prevent local gambling 

premises causing harm through gambling. 

For example, councils will be coming into 

contact with people impacted by problem 

gambling through a range of services, 

including housing and homelessness, 

financial inclusion, children's services and 

addiction services. Yet few, if any, councils 

have data on where problem gambling has 

been a contributory or additional factor in 

these cases, and we are only just starting 

to take full advantage of the support that 

is currently available for problem gambling 

through the third sector led treatment system. 

Having the support of elected members 

and the chief executive in changing our 

understanding of harmful gambling and its 

impacts is vital. It sends a clear signal that 

addressing problem gambling is a priority 

not just for public health and licensing but for 

the whole council and its wider stakeholders, 

thereby facilitating cooperation across 

departments and with local communities and 

partners. 

We have therefore developed this document 

to provide an overview of problem gambling, 

and how councils can begin to try to help 

local residents who are impacted by it. From 

our work on two of the LGA:s policy boards, 

we know that this is an issue of concern 

to councillor colleagues up and down 

the country. We hope you find it useful in 

understanding how councils can strengthen 

their work in this area. 

Councillor Ian Hudspeth 

Chairman, LGA Community Wellbeing Board 

Councillor Simon Blackburn 

Chair, LGA Safer and Stronger Communities 

Board 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



Page 20

Agenda Item 7



Executive summary 

Harmful gambling is defined as any type of 

repetitive gambling that disrupts or damages 

personal, family or recreational pursuits. It 

can have many and varied impact, including 

on an individual's physical and mental 

health, relationships, housing and finances, 

and affect a wide range of people, such 

as families, colleagues and wider local 

communities. 

Evidence suggests that certain groups are 

more vulnerable to problem gambling including 

children and young people, people with mental 

health issues, certain minority ethnic groups, the 

unemployed, homeless people, those with low 

intellectual functioning, people with financially 

constrained circumstances and those living in 

deprived areas. 

Research, education and treatment of harmful 

gambling is overseen by the Gambling 

Commission, Responsible Gambling 

Strategy Board and GambleAware, funded 

by voluntary donations from the gambling 

industry. The national network of support for 

people experiencing harmful gambling is 

based upon the provision of cognitive based 

therapy; residential and psychiatric support 

is also available for those with more complex 

problems. 

Councils are not responsible for providing 

treatment for harmful gambling, but there is a 

range of ways in which different services can 

seek to support local residents and families 

who are affected by it. 

District and unitary (licensing) authorities have 

a statutory role regulating local gambling 

premises and various tools to try to prevent 

gambling related harm occurring in premises: 

developing maps highlighting locally specific 

gambling risks; preparing local licensing 

policies setting out expectations of gambling 

businesses, and undertaking compliance 

visits to assess whether they are meeting 

these expectations. Planning teams may 

also be able to play a role in relation to local 

gambling premises. 

Beyond licensing and planning teams, many 

council service areas will be coming into 

contact with people experiencing or impacted 

by harmful gambling, including children's, 

family and adult services, treatment services, 

homelessness and wider housing services 

and financial inclusion services. 

Councils should ensure that frontline staff are 

provided with training on harmful gambling 

so they recognise potential cases: there 

is a significant opportunity for these staff 

to help local residents access support by 

signposting to the national treatment network 

via the National Gambling Helpline. Councils 

can also seek to work with local partners and 

build links with support organisations to help 

develop specific local referral pathways and 

ensure these can be accessed from across 

the full range of local services. As frontline 

awareness and identification of harmful 

gambling develops, councils should ensure 

they capture data about it, to help understand 

the extent of harmful gambling, impacts and 

costs associated with it. 

Public health teams can play a role in 

ensuring that this data, and related data on 

groups at particular risk of harmful gambling, 

is collected and shared. They can also work 

with local partners and through Health and 

Wellbeing Boards and Clinical Commissioning 

Groups, to develop a coherent approach 

to harmful gambling, including focused 

preventative work. 

4 Tackling gambling related harm -A whole council approach 
Page 21

Agenda Item 7



Page 22

Agenda Item 7



Understanding harmf I 
gambling 

There is comparatively little research and 

literature relating to problem gambling and 

gambling related harm, although this has 

begun to change in recent years. This section 

provides a summary of the definitions and 

recent research. 

Definitions and prevalence 

Gambling behaviours occur along a 

continuum, with possible harms and benefits1 

present dependent on level of involvement. 

Harmful gambling2 is defined as any type 

of repetitive gambling that disrupts or 

damages personal, family or recreational 

pursuits. In its most extreme form, gambling is 

recognised as an addiction by the American 

Psychiatric Association (APA), as well as by 

the World Health Organization (WHO) in the 

International Classification of Diseases.34 At 

risk gamblers refers to people who are at 

higher risk of experiencing negative effects 

due to their gambling behaviour but who are 

not classified as problem gamblers. 

Gambling related harm is a broad concept 

that impacts a wide range of people including 

families, colleagues and those within the 

wider community who may not have been 

involved in gambling themselves. 

1 Forrest, D. An Economic and Social Review of Gambling 
in Great Britain 
htlps://infohub.gambleaware.org/wp contenU 
u loads/2016/02/816-2437-1-PB. df 

2 Harmful gambling is also referred to as problem gambling, 
compulsive gambling, irresponsible gambling, gambling 
disorder or pathological gambling. It is an umbrella term that 
captures those who have a diagnosable gambling addiction 
as well as those experiencing elevated levels of harm due 
to their gambling behaviour. 

3 https://dsm.psychiatryonline.org/doi/book/10.1176/appi. 
books.9780890425596 

4 https://icd.who.inUbrowse11/l-m/en#/http://id.who.inUicd/ 
entity/1041487064 

Harms may include financial hardship, 

relationship breakdown, domestic violence, 

mental health problems and suicidal thoughts. 

The most recent Health Survey statistics 

for England found that 56 per cent of the 

population in England have spent money 

on at least one gambling activity in the 

past year.5 The Health Survey statistics also 

indicate that in 2016, 0.7 per cent of people 

in England (approximately 300,000 people) 

identified as problem gamblers, with 3.6 

per cent (approximately 1,610,000 people 

- 6.6% of gamblers) at low or moderate risk

based on their gambling. Due to limitations

in how this data is collated, it is likely these

estimates are conservative, and may not

capture some vulnerable population groups

such as homeless people and students.

Recent research by Leeds Beckett University

for Leeds City Council6 has concluded that

gambling behaviour and problem gambling

are not equally distributed across England

and that certain areas experience higher

rates of problem gambling (see page 24-25).

5 www.gamblin commission. ov.uk/PDF/suive -data/ 
Eng land-Health-Survey-Findings-2016. pdf 

6 www.leeds.gov.uk/docs/Problem%20Gambllng%20Report, 
pdf 

6 Tackling gambling related harm -A whole council approach 
Page 23

Agenda Item 7



Page 24

Agenda Item 7



Page 25

Agenda Item 7



Page 26

Agenda Item 7



Harmful ga bling -
framework for prevention 
ands pport 

National approach to 
responsible gambling 

There is a tripartite arrangement for the 

research, education and treatment (RET) of 

harmful gambling between the Gambling 

Commission14, the Responsible Gambling 

Strategy Board (RGSB) 15 and GambleAware16
, 

as seen in the diagram below. Policy 

responsibility for harmful gambling rests with 

the Department for Digital, Culture, Media 

and Sport (DCMS) at government level. 

The Gambling Commission is an independent 

non-departmental public body sponsored by 

DCMS, that was set up under the Gambling Act 

2005 to regulate commercial gambling in Great 

Britain in partnership with licensing authorities. 

Its work is funded by fees set by DCMS and 

paid by the organisations and individuals they 

license, and, in respect of National Lottery 

functions, by a grant from the National Lottery 

Distribution Fund. The Commission's strategic 

objectives for 2018-21 include preventing harm 

to consumers and the public.17 

The RGSB is an independent body 

comprising members with expertise in issues 

including gambling research, public health, 

psychology and medicine and education, 

as well as in the gambling industry and 

gambling regulation. The RGSB's objective 

is to minimise gambling related harm. It 

develops the National Responsible Gambling 

Strategy for Britain and provides independent 

advice to the Gambling Commission and 

14 www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/home.aspx 
15 www.rgsb.org. u k/ About us/Governance/Statement-of-intent. 

pdf 
16 http://about.GambleAware.org (formerly the Responsible

Gambling Trust). 
17 www.gamblin commission.gov.uk/PDF/Strateg -2018-2021. 

pdf 

Government on issues including priorities 

for research, education and treatment. While 

the RGSB sets the strategy for responsible 

gambling, others are responsible for 

implementing it. 

GambleAware is an independent charity18 

tasked with commissioning research, 

education and a national treatment service to 

help minimise gambling-related harm in Great 

Britain, in line with the national responsible 

gambling strategy. 

The Gambling Act applies the 'polluter pays' 

principle, and GambleAware is funded 

by voluntary donations from the gambling 

industry. All gambling operators are required 

by the conditions of their licence to make a 

donation towards research, education and 

treatment (RET) and this is enforced by the 

Gambling Commission, but the amount they 

donate is ultimately up to them. 19 The LGA, 

GambleAware itself and others have argued 

that this voluntary system should be replaced 

by a mandatory levy, and the Government 

has warned the industry that the existing 

legislation which provides for such a levy will 

be invoked if the voluntary system fails to 

deliver sufficient funding. 

Currently the majority of research, treatment 

and education around harmful gambling 

undertaken in Great Britain is commissioned 

by GambleAware, although there are instances 

where gambling companies support initiatives 

directly such as in Leeds (see page 24) and 

other stakeholders are now beginning to 

engage with harmful gambling. 

18 Observers from DCMS, the Gambling Commission and 
RGSB attend all meetings of GambleAware's Board. In 
recent years, GambleAware has sought to strengthen its 
independence from the gambling industry. 

19 There is a suggested donation of 0.1 per cent of profits. 

1 O Tackling gambling related harm -A whole council approach 
Page 27

Agenda Item 7



Page 28

Agenda Item 7



Some of the recent education programmes 

they have funded include: 

• Teacher and youth worker gambling

toolkit - GambleAware has partnered

with Fast Forward, a youth education charity,

to develop a toolkit about youth gambling

and problem gambling, designed to help

practitioners who work with young people to

design and deliver prevention activities.22

• PSHE lesson materials GambleAware

and Demos have partnered together to

pilot an intervention in secondary schools

across England and Wales with pupils

aged 14 15. Lessons were designed

by Demos, the PSHE Association, The

Mentor Foundation UK (Mentor UK),

the National Problem Gambling Clinic and

a range of independent teachers/advisers

to build up the resilience of teenagers to

the risks related to gambling.23 

GamCare is an independent charity 

responsible for providing the first level of 

support for people identified as having 

gambling issues, as well as for their partners, 

family and friends. Alongside the treatment 

services GamCare provides (detailed below), 

they also work to provide training to frontline 

organisations who in the course of their 

work may come into contact with problem 

gamblers or those directly affected by it, 

including youth facing professionals, housing 

workers, people working in the criminal 

justice system and for sports clubs and 

organisations. GamCare is also engaged in 

outreach programmes working directly with 

young people to build critical thinking and 

resilience around issues relating to gambling. 

·rreatrr1ent

Almost half of GambleAware's funding is 

spent on treatment. GambleAware's national 

network of support provides predominantly 

cognitive based therapy with residential 

and psychiatric support available for more 

complex presentations. 

22 hit :/ffastforward.org.uk/gamblingtoolkiU 

23 www.demos.co. uk/wp-contenUuploads/2018I03/Gambling
Education Teach ing Resource Booklet 1 .pdf 

The charity expects its network of treatment 

services to reach just 4 per cent of problem 

gamblers and affected others, and is keen 

to explore innovative approaches with local 

authorities to ensure that those who need its 

help are aware of how to access services. 

It has warned the industry that if demand 

for treatment services rises, then gambling 

operators will be expected to provide 

whatever additional funding is needed. 

The National Gambling Helpline is the primary 

entry point into GambleAware's national 

treatment service network, and many people 

can be helped through brief interventions 

offered by the Helpline's advisers. The next 

level of treatment services are commissioned 

through three organisations; GamCare, 

the National Problem Gambling Clinic and 

Gordon Moody Association. 

GamCare is an independent charity 

responsible for providing the first level of 

support for people identified as having 

gambling issues. GamCare runs the 

National Gambling Helpline, which deals 

with more than 30,000 calls each year and 

provides one to one information, advice 

and emotional support to callers.Where 

needed, extended support via call backs 

can be offered by helpline advisers. 

Support is provided online through 

individual or group sessions, using cognitive 

behavioural therapy and motivational 

interviewing principles24 and the charity also 

moderates an online forum and chatroom 

where users can talk about issues relating 

to problem gambling. GamCare also offers 

individual face to face counselling for those 

who need more sustained support, both 

directly and through its network of partner 

organisations. 

GamCare are a key point of contact for local 

authorities interested in exploring problem 

gambling and comprehensive information 

is also available on their website,25 which 

would be a useful starting point for local 

authorities exploring this issue. 

24 www.nhs.uk/conditionslcognitive behavioural-therapy cbtl 

25 www.gamcare.org.uk/about-us/who-we-arelour-partner

network 

12 Tackling gambling related harm -A whole council approach 
Page 29

Agenda Item 7



Page 30

Agenda Item 7



Page 31

Agenda Item 7



Page 32

Agenda Item 7



• responsible for issuing gambling premises

licences, monitoring compliance with the

terms of these licences and the wider

Gambling Act, and taking enforcement

action if necessary

• required to have regard to the Gambling

Act's licensing objectives, one of which is

protecting children and other people from

being harmed or exploited by gambling.

Licensing statement of policy, local area 

profile and risk assessments 

The statement of policy and local area profile 

are intended to help prevent gambling related 

harm occurring. They provide an opportunity 

to set out the local approach to gambling 

regulation, expectations of gambling operators 

and specific local circumstances. Local area 

profiles should be separate to the policy 

itself, so that they can be easily updated. A 

consultation process is required to update 

statements of policy, which are legally required 

to be updated every three years.4041 

The local area profile should identify different 

parts of the local area where there may be 

greater or specific risks of gambling related 

harm, whether because of the people likely to 

be in that area (for example, where there is a 

treatment centre or hostel); the other types of 

businesses in the area (for example, in an area 

with a vibrant night time economy, or where 

there are already multiple gambling premises), 

or because of the characteristics of an area 

(for example, if there are pre-existing issues 

with anti social behaviour or crime). 

Authorities can draw on some of the existing 

research highlighted in the first section of 

this document to identify specific at risk 

groups, coupled with their local knowledge of 

relevant issues and premises. This can help 

identify additional measures or protections 

that may need to be applied in those areas, 

for example specific licence conditions or a 

presumption that it may be harder to get a 

licence if it is felt that there is a greater risk to 

the licensing objectives in certain areas. 

40 Licensing authorities are required to update their 

statements of policy by January 2019 

41 Local Area Profiles are not a mandatory requirement, 

but the Gambling Commission and LGA encourage 

all licensing authorities to produce one. 

To help develop their statements of policy, 

authorities should consult widely and with 

those who may have an insight or relevant 

data on any local risks or issues, including: 

• organisations working with people who are

problem gamblers, such as Gamcare and

family support groups

• advocacy organisations, such as the

Citizen's Advice Bureau

• homelessness and housing services/

associations

• local public and mental health teams

and safeguarding boards

• local businesses

• other tiers of local government, if applicable.

Licensing authorities may draw on GamCare 

data about the number of national helpline 

calls received from a specific area, or about 

the numbers of people treated in certain 

areas. However, as support services may be 

accessed anonymously these are unlikely 

to be fully comprehensive: the number of 

people seeking treatment locally may reflect 

awareness of its availability and the current 

map of local providers rather than the actual 

level of local need. 

Given the limitations on data about problem 

gambling, GambleAware has commissioned 

a Treatment Needs Assessment, which may 

provide better assumptions on which to estimate 

local needs when it reports by the end of 2018. 

Some licensing authorities have used mapping 

tools to help inform their local area profiles. As 

set out above, Westminster and Manchester 

City Councils undertook work to develop local 

risk maps for their areas42 using national and 

local data to identify hotspot areas at particular 

risk of gambling related harm. A number 

of other authorities including Warrington, 

Shropshire, Brighton and Hove and Barking 

and Dagenham councils have since replicated 

the approach themselves.43 

42 www.geofutures.com/research 2/gambling related harm
how local space shapes our understanding-of-risk/ 
The methodology and maps are also available at: 
www.westminster.gov.uk/gambling-research 

43 Ref page 5: www.gambllngcommlssion. ov.uk/PDF/LA
bulletin/Licensing authority-bulletin-January-2018. df 

16 Tackling gambling related harm -A whole council approach 
Page 33

Agenda Item 7



Authorities should also use their statements of 

policy to identify what they expect gambling 

operators to do to uphold the licensing 

objectives. Gambling businesses are required 

to undertake risk assessments for each of 

their premises. These must take the statement 

of policy into account, so it is important that 

authorities use their policies to set clear 

guidelines for operators.44

Risk assessments are not required to be 

shared with licensing authorities (unless a 

business is applying for a new premises 

licence or to vary an existing one) but 

authorities can ask to receive copies of them, 

and can also require that they are kept on 

the relevant premises. This is a good way 

to check that the assessments are locally 

tailored and owned by premises managers 

rather than being a tick box exercise 

undertaken by regional or head office. 

Working with gambling 
businesses 

Gambling operators must comply with the 

Gambling Commission's licensing conditions 

and codes of practice (LCCP).45 The social 

responsibility code requires them to have 

and put into effect policies and procedures 

to promote socially responsible gambling 

and these should reduce the risk of and 

seek to identify problem gambling. L icensing 

authorities should ensure that businesses are 

meeting these obligations and encourage 

them to strengthen their approaches to social 

responsibility. 

The requirements on gambling premises 

under the social responsibility code are 

based upon key areas: 

• Provision of information on gambling

responsibly for example, the availability

of time or monetary limits for players and

information on where to get help and

advice about gambling.

44 Ref pages 2-3: 
www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/PDF/LA bulletin/ 
Licensing-authority-bulleUn-January-2018.pdf 

45 www. amblln commission. ov.uk/for- ambling-businesses/ 
Compliance/LCCP/Licence-conditions-and-codes of
practice.aspx 

• Customer interaction licensees are

required to have policies and procedures

in place governing customer interaction

where there are concerns that a customer

is displaying signs of problem gambling.

These will include staff training and the

types of behaviour that may trigger an

intervention or where staff may consider

refusing services to customers.

• Layout of premises - operators must

ensure that the layout of a gambling

premises supports the effective supervision

of the premises.

• Self-exclusion46 licensees must have

procedures for self exclusion that ensure

that individuals who wish to self exclude

from gambling are prevented from

participating in gambling. Self exclusion

schemes are now required to operate on

a multi-operator basis, meaning that an

individual who self-excludes from one

operator should be able to self-exclude

from all operators offering the same type

of gambling in the same locality. Trade

bodies for different sectors of the gambling

industry have led on the development of

multi operator self exclusion arrangements

for each sector.

Alongside the mandatory requirements, many 

sections of the industry have developed their 

own voluntary codes to promote responsible 

gambling, which local premises may also 

implement. GamCare also work with operators 

to provide certification47 for 'best in class' 

player protection policies and practices and 

also provides training courses for industry 

on issues including identifying customers 

who may have an issue with gambling and 

communicating social responsibility messages 

to all customers, as well as more in depth 

training around customer interaction.48 

46 Whereby an individual opts to self-exclude from a gambling 
premises 

4 7 www.gamcare.org. uk/training-and-certification/gamcare
certification 0 

48 www.gamcare.org.uk/training-and-certification/identification
and intervention-training 

Tackling gambling related harm -A whole council approach 17 
Page 34

Agenda Item 7



Licensing authorities can work proactively 

with local businesses to support them with 

their obligations in this area or to encourage 

them to adopt best in class measures, 

for example by making this a requirement 

through the statement of policy or specific 

premises licensing conditions. 

Additionally, a number of licensing authorities 

have worked with local gambling premises 

to develop Betwatch or other partnership/ 

code of practice schemes. The Gambling 

Commission have developed a toolkit to 

support local areas in developing Betwatch 

approaches.49 These are likely to have a wider 

focus than harmful gambling, for example 

they may focus on reducing any anti social 

behaviour associated with local premises, but 

can provide a useful forum for engaging with 

the industry and understanding any specific 

local work on harmful gambling. 

Compliance and 
enforcement work 

Licensing authorities should use their 

compliance and enforcement work to 

help ensure that local gambling premises 

are fulfilling their social responsibility 

requirements. Statements of policy must 

set out how authorities will exercise their 

inspection functions, including inspection 

activity (and what pre planned visits will 

cover) and dealing with non compliance by 

premises. There are a number of issues in 

relation to harmful gambling which authorities 

may wish to review during pre planned or 

proactive compliance visits: 

• details of training policies and training

undertaken by staff

• records of refusals to serve or admit on

age grounds

• the premises' approach to managing

self exclusion, how the premises fulfils the

requirement to participate in multi-operator

schemes and numbers of people currently

self excluded

• involvement or impact of any work in local
49 www.gamblingcommission.gov. uk/PDF /Betwatch toolkit. pdf 

gambling such as Betwatch schemes 

• confirming that appropriate signage and

information is in place.

Template assessment forms have been 

developed to support licensing authorities 

with their inspection visits.50 

The Gambling Commission publishes 

statistics of licensing authority activity 51 in 

this area. With some returns showing limited 

or no compliance and inspection work by 

authorities, it is encouraging them to be 

more active, for example through additional 

compliance visits or test purchasing 

operations. 

Many councils already operate their own 

under age test purchasing through trading 

standards and licensing teams, particularly 

in response to complaints or intelligence. 

Larger operators are now responsible for 

conducting or taking part in under age testing 

and sharing these results with the Gambling 

Commission. Licensing authorities may 

choose to ask for copies of test purchasing 

results as part of their local risk assessment 

expectations and use this evidence to 

help target their own activity in this area. 

Authorities should have a plan in place 

for dealing with test purchase failures,for 

example, requiring a premises to undertake 

certain measures to address this and 

undergo a follow up test within a specified 

amount of time. A second failure would be 

expected to lead to enforcement action. 

What councils can do: 

• Ensure there is an up to date local area

profile and statement of licensing policy in

place for the local area.

• Set out best practice expectations of local

gambling operators and risk assessment

processes.

• Use compliance visits and enforcement

tools appropriately.

• Consider under age sales testing and

50 www.lle biz atewa .co.uk/ ambllng-act-2005/ 
51 www.gamblingcommisslon.gov.uk/news-action-and

statistics/Statistics and research/Statistics/Licensing

authority-statistics.aspx 

18 Tackling gambling related harm -A whole council approach 
Page 35

Agenda Item 7



local partnership schemes such as 

Betwatch. 

• Encourage local gambling businesses to

apply for Gamcare certification52 for best

in class player protection policies and

undertake the Gamcare training courses.

Location of premises and 
the planning authority role 

Many local authorities have been extremely 

frustrated at their inability to prevent the 

development of clusters of gambling 

premises, specifically betting shops, in their 

areas. This became a particular issue following 

the economic downturn of 2008, which saw 

betting shops relocating into vacant town 

centre premises. A particular concern has 

been the associated concentration of FOBTs 

in these clusters. Research undertaken by 

Geofutures for GambleAware has shown that 

clusters of premises and machines have 

typically been located in more deprived 

areas: 'areas close to betting shops tend 

towards higher levels of crime events, 

resident deprivation, unemployment, and 

ethnic diversity ... players overall tend to live in 

neighbourhoods with higher levels of resident 

unemployment, multiple deprivation and 

economic inactivity.' 53 

Neither the planning or licensing frameworks 

have provided clear options for refusing 

new or additional gambling premises. The 

Gambling Act includes a statutory aim to 

permit licensing which has made it difficult to 

refuse new licence applications. However in 

2015 Westminster City Council drew on the 

work they were doing in developing local area 

profiling when considering a new premises 

application. 

52 www.gamcare.org.uk/training and certification/gamcare

certification O 

53 htl :1/infohub. ambleaware.or /wp-content/ 

uploads/2015/08/b2gamingmachines finalreport 20150218. 

pdf 

With the support of and evidence from a 

large number of residents the council was 

able to refuse an application for a new 

betting premises licence in an area with 

multiple existing premises where the local 

characteristics had led the authority to identify 

it as a location with a high risk to those who 

were vulnerable of harm from gambling. 

That profiling and evidence also led to the 

successful review of an existing betting shop 

in an area that was identified as posing a risk 

to those who were vulnerable and being a 

focal point for potential criminal activity. 

There have been similar challenges in using 

the planning system to limit the opening of 

gambling premises. A number of councils 

previously sought to use Article 4 directions 

to remove permitted development rights 

to convert other types of premises into 

betting shops without the need for planning 

permission. However, changes to the planning 

system in 201554 effectively introduced this 

approach across all areas. As a result of the 

change, betting shops in England are now 

classed as sui generis (a use that does not 

fall within any use class). This means that any 

new betting shop must apply for full planning 

permission. The only exception to this relates 

to a new betting shop tenant moving into a 

unit formerly used (as its last known use) as 

a betting shop. In this circumstance, the new 

tenant would be able to operate under the 

previous user's planning use class. 

This means that planning authorities now have 

some powers to manage the opening of new 

or additional betting shops in their areas. If an 

authority wished to refuse a new application 

for planning permission it would still need 

to do so by reference to its local plan and 

associated evidence base. Local Plans need 

to be approved through examination by the 

national Planning Inspectorate, and councils 

would need a robust evidence base to 

include restrictions on betting shops. 

54 The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) 

(Amendment) (England) Order 2015 

Tackling gambling related harm -A whole council approach 19 
Page 36

Agenda Item 7



Page 37

Agenda Item 7



The role of public health 

Harmful gambling is a health inequality 

and social justice issue that needs to be 

addressed through partnership between 

public health and other council teams using 

national rules and regulations to their full 

advantage. It is increasingly recognised as 

a public health issue, with the Responsible 

Gambling Strategy Board in particular 

emphasising the need for a public health 

response. 

The LGA and Public Health England are clear 

that a public health response does not equate 

to local public health funded services having 

a responsibility for providing treatment for 

problem gamblers. Councils are not currently 

funded to provide support for problem 

gamblers under the terms of the transfer of 

responsibility to local government in 2013, 

and are not part of the treatment framework 

outlined in section two of this document. 

However, both local government and health 

services can do more to ensure that people 

experiencing harms from gambling are 

identified whether through primary or 

secondary care, or through council services -

and signposted to support and treatment. 

It is clear that public health teams can play a 

strategic role in relation to harmful gambling, 

and should consider the overlaps between 

problem gambling and other local public 

health issues, given the high levels of co

morbidity with mental health problems and 

the negative financial, health and relationship 

impacts of harmful gambling on problem 

gamblers and those around them. 

A number of local authorities have 

undertaken a full strategic needs assessment 

in relation to gambling. Using public health 

and spatial mapping tools (such as the 

Geofutures approach adopted by a number 

of authorities) it is possible to identify physical 

areas of vulnerability. 

Local public health teams can also engage with 

the issue by identifying and promoting local 

pathways of care to existing treatment provision 

and support for harmful gamblers and their 

families and raising awareness of the issue. 

It is important to increase public health teams 

literacy around problem gambling so they 

can support services to recognise the signs 

of problem gambling, assess and signpost 

to appropriate support. GambleAware has 

commissioned The Royal Society for Public 

Health to develop a learning tools to support 

all those working with members of the 

public to understand better and respond to 

gambing related harms. 

The Gambling Commission has produced a 

briefing note on the issues where it believes 

public health can play a role, including the 

development of statements of licensing 

policy (considered in the previous section) 

and working with local health professionals to 

increase awareness of the issue.56 

56 www. amblin commission.gov.uk/PDF/Gamblln -related
harm-as a publlc-health-issue.pdf 

Tackling gambling related harm -A whole council approach 21 
Page 38

Agenda Item 7



Page 39

Agenda Item 7



Page 40

Agenda Item 7



Page 41

Agenda Item 7



Page 42

Agenda Item 7



Page 43

Agenda Item 7



Page 44

Agenda Item 7



MEMBER INDUCTION & TRAINING

Legal and Democratic Services Advisory Committee – 19 March 2019

Report of Chief Officer Corporate Services

Status For Information

Key Decision No

Portfolio Holder Cllr. Anna Firth

Contact Officer Jim Carrington-West  Ext. 7286

Recommendation to Legal and Democratic Advisory Committee:  The Member 
Induction and Training report is noted.

Reason for recommendation: To inform Members of the preparations Officers are 
making, in advance of the District Council elections taking place on 2 May 2019, for 
the induction and training of newly elected Councillors. 

Introduction and Background

1 Directly after each District Council election or by-election an induction 
programme is delivered for newly elected Councillors. The induction process 
is broadly split in to two parts. The first is the formal acceptance of office 
and completion of forms and paperwork to enable a newly elected 
candidate to take up their role as a Councillor.

2 The second part of the induction, primarily aimed at those elected to the 
District Council for the first time, is to share more information about the 
District Council and the services it provides. In the past the Council has 
provided a short presentation, a Senior Officer Support (SOS) scheme, a tour 
of the District and short training sessions on a range of matters including the 
planning process and Council budgets. All Councillors also receive a copy of 
the Council’s Members Handbook.

Member Induction & Training 2019

3 Following the Member Induction process in 2015 Councillors were invited to 
provide their feedback on the process through a short questionnaire. 
Satisfaction with the formal part of the induction process (acceptance of 
office, photos and completion of forms) was an average of 90%.

4 The satisfaction score for presentations given during the second part of the 
induction was 87%. When asked about the Members Handbook, 90% were 

Page 45

Agenda Item 8



satisfied with the content and three-quarters told us it should remain a 
paper based document and not provided electronically.

5 When asked, overall, how satisfied were you with the induction process 
96.4% of Members were satisfied or very satisfied.

6 Some suggestions for improvements to the process were put forward and 
Officers will take these in to account in planning for the 2019 Induction. 
This includes an improved process for the completion of forms and more 
information about Council Committees and Meeting Dates in the Members 
Handbook.

7 Members of the Advisory Committee are invited to share any further 
suggestions that they have for the Members Induction & Training programme 
for 2019 for Officers consideration.

Key Implications

Financial 

There are no financial implications for this report

Legal Implications and Risk Assessment Statement. 

There are no legal implications for this report

Equality Assessment  

The decisions recommended through this paper have a remote or low relevance to 
the substance of the Equality Act. There is no perceived impact on end users.

Appendices None

Background Papers None

Jim Carrington-West
Chief Officer Corporate Services

Page 46

Agenda Item 8



 
Legal & Democratic Advisory Committee Work Plan 2018/19 (as at 5/03/2019)

19 March 2019 27 June 2019 31 October 2019 14 January 2020

Legal Successes (Portfolio 
Holder Update)

Brexit Update

How Licensing Contributes to 
Safeguarding

Review of 2018/19

Workshop Session – Feedback 
for Member Induction

Legal Successes (Portfolio 
Holder Update)

Brexit Update

Expansion of Licensing 
Partnership

Legal Successes (Portfolio 
Holder Update)

Legal Successes (Portfolio 
Holder Update)

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	4a Legal Successes
	04 Legal successes from 05 10 2018 to 22 01 2019

	6 Brexit Update
	7 Licensing and how it contributes to Safeguarding
	08 Appendix A

	8 Member Induction and Training
	9 Work Plan



